
 

1 
 

KASSON TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, February 19, 2024 7:00 p.m. 
Kasson Township Hall, 10988 S. Newman Road, Maple City, MI 49664 

 
Minutes 

  

1. Call Meeting to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
Chairman Lanham called the meeting to order at 7:00pm with the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

2. Roll Call of Commissioners and Staff/Recognition of Visitors 
A. Present: Chairman – Mike Lanham; Zoning Board of Appeals- Dave Noonan; 

Vice Chairman- Jerry Roush; Secretary T Eftaxiadis; Township Board Rep- Tad 

Carter 

Absent: None 

B. Staff: Tim Cypher, Zoning Administrator; Marsha Wolf, Recording Secretary 

C. Visitors present: approximately 8 visitors 

  

3. Consideration of Agenda: Additions or Corrections 
Chairman Lanham asked for a motion to approve the agenda as presented. 
Roush moved to approve the agenda as presented; T Eftaxiadis seconded. All 
present in favor, motion carried.   

 
  

4. Declaration of Conflicts of Interest- None   
 

  

5. Approval of Minutes – January 15, 2024   
Lanham requested clarification on January minutes page 5 regarding Sleeping 
Bear Investments sign and if it is currently within ordinance.  Cypher advised it 
does not currently meet standards. Lanham requested January minutes to be 
updated to match corresponding agenda numbers.  January minutes were 
updated appropriately. 
Chairman Lanham asked for a motion to accept the minutes as amended for 

January 15, 2024 meeting. Noonan moved to approve the minutes as 

amended for January 15, 2024; Roush seconded. Carter abstained from 

approving due to being absent for January 15, 2024 meeting. All remaining 

present in favor, motion carried. 

  

6. Correspondence Received - 
Cypher advised he will address correspondences during the public hearing. 



 

2 
 

  

7. General Public Comment – None 
 

8. Area Reports  
A. Chairperson – Commissioner Lanham – No Report 
B. Secretary – Secretary Eftaxiadis – Advised the continuation of public 
hearing was posted as required. 
C. Township Board – Commissioner Carter – No Report 
D. Zoning Board of Appeals – Commissioner Noonan - No Report  
E. Zoning Administrator’s Report – ZA Cypher – January 2024 was sent out 
on February 10, 2024. With January 15, 2024 minutes being approved, 
Cypher will reach out to Elmers with renewal permits that were approved 
last month.  Cypher completed 4 construction site inspections.  The pending 
yard clean-up is on-going and good progress is being made. Cypher received 
16 phone calls and 9 emails.  

  

9. Old Business   
A. Sleeping Bear Storage -Public Hearing- Continuation from January 15, 
2024 meeting 
 
B. Close regular meeting and open Public Hearing 
Chairman Lanham asked for a motion to open the Public Hearing for 

Sleeping Bear Storage continuation. Carter moved to open the 

continuation of the Public Hearing for Sleeping Bear Storage, Eftaxiadis 

seconded. All present in favor, motion carried.  

 

C. Continuation of Sleeping Bear Storage Public Hearing 
Lanham advised the January 15, 2024 meeting addressed first 4 
sections of the public hearing process, and PC Discussion with staff will 
begin.  Cypher requested public comment to be allowed prior to the 
discussion with staff. Board approved to have public comment prior to 
discussion with staff.  

 

1. Public Comment: 
Mark Patterson, 3800 W. Empire Hwy. Red Barn. Referred to site plan and 

asked how big the building on the west side is. Exhibit F says 165 ft, but site 

plan shows 220 ft. Addressed no trees are showing on site plan on the west 

side and asked if that was still the plan. Patterson addressed the slope on west 

side and asked if it was a 50% slope on final site plan since it will affect the type 

of shrubbery to be planted. 

 



 

3 
 

Butch Wilbert, 3993 W. Gilbert Hwy. Concerns on changing the facility from the 

original site plan and the decision on expanding from the original plan. The 

wind blows dirt onto the southern windows of the resident’s home. Concerns 

on the size of the screening used on the back of the property and asked if the 

berm will still be there. Concerns on the trees that will be planted and the time 

it will take for growth. 

 

Libby Western, Sleeping Bear Bed & Breakfast. Concerns on township on times 

of construction. Last time construction was conducted, they worked all night 

long. There are pictures showing work being conducted at 2:30 am with bright 

lights hitting resident’s homes. Construction will impact guests experience with 

lights and noise, so she would like to know if hours of construction will be 

limited and flood lights concerns will be addressed with contractors. In regards 

to previous comment that storage area will increase to property value, would 

like to know how that was determined. Western researched storage units and 

how far customers travel, advised that is typically a 3–5-mile range with less 

than 20% traveling further than that. Advised there is sufficient storage in the 

area already. Western would like less comment from the applicant on how 

beautiful the facility will be because the only beautiful storage unit is one you 

cannot see. Mentioned Empire is the gateway to the dunes, and hopes the 

value of the area is not affected. 

 

Dean Western, 11977 S. Gilbert. Concerns on trees and Krause was going to put 

in Evergreens. Stated other Kasson Township commercial buildings have a 

screen of trees. Concerns with lights and loud noise and dawn to dusk access 

with the facility abutting a residential neighborhood. If there is no access, there 

does not need to be any lights but motion sensors lighting. Height needs to be 

limited keep horizon. Questions retention pond for runoff vs. tension pond that 

would drain. Addressed noise and climate control. HVAC runs at 70-90 decibels, 

similar to the noise level of a motorcycle. An industrial generator can go up to 

115 decibels, similar to the noise level of a siren. Concerns of fire hazard and 

self-storage facilities requiring a sprinkler system required by Michigan building 

code.  

 

John Younkers, 3987 W Gilbert Farm Lane. Concerns of conversation not 

reflected in previous minutes regarding access after dusk and that gates would 

automatically lock at dusk. Advised what is heard verbally makes it into 

amended approved document. 

 

 

 



 

4 
 

2. Applicant Response to Public Comment:  
Jen Aragon received 5-6 letters and will respond to the items addressed. 

Advised retention pond needs to be there per Steve Christianson permit. 

Commented area is sandy and great for filtration, there should be no standing 

water. Concerns with erosion and sediment control and that MDOT approved 

the project per the new proposal. The fire department signed off with no 

concerns. District health has also signed off as proposed. Drain commissioner 

current SESC is sufficient. In regards to access, they do not plan to have 24hr 

access. Applicant proposed to have gate for proposed hours of 6am-10pm. 

Motion sensors as previously discussed will only be activated when someone 

visits and advised the statistic is people visit the storage typically every 4-6 

months. The downlight proposed is on the south end M72 to light front of 

road. Trees will be 2-inch caliber pines, 4-5 ft high with 2 rows staggered. 

Applicants hired landscaping company. Elected to do a fence along the whole 

perimeter, proposing cedar fence on 3 sides to make more aesthetically 

pleasing and block view of storage facility. Lighting has been addressed with 

contractor and after-hours work, and should have been an isolated incident 

when they were pouring concrete. Plan is based of 6.44 acre, they have 6.99 

acres, hence the changes. 

 

3. PC Discussion with Staff: 
Cypher: Received 2 letters late in day that were not presented for review to 

Commissioners due to time of submission. Advised Jim Lively who owns the 

campground, sent an email (Attachment A) to Cypher to support the project. 

Lively noted concerns of night sky and landscaping is adequate to represent the 

township in a good way. Cypher commented that neighbors are in the 

commercial district and private arrangements or verbal agreements previously 

stated by Krause, unless deed restricted in which Cypher could find no record, 

it makes it difficult for the township to enforce previous agreements.  

Cypher advised Dean Western concerns (Attachment B) addressed in public 

comment were received in email and will be forwarded to commissioners to 

review. 

Libby Western sent letter (Attachment C) to Cypher with questions on how 

many trees, distance between, size, trees location, lighting, hours of 

construction. Neighborly courtesy addressed in Libby Western later, Cypher 

advised excavators tend to work later when weather allows. In addressing 

Libby Westerns concern of glamping area on southeast side the B&B being 

impacted. Cypher advised there are general standards the state affords due to 

the limited building season. 

 



 

5 
 

Cypher received a letter from Hughthir White (Attachment D) 12745 S. 

Trememos Rd. Empire. White hopes there will be site blockage, trees planted, 

dawn to dusk construction access. Addressed concerns of proposed height of 

building going from 12ft to 22ft. Cypher commented ordinance allows building 

height up to 35 ft.  

Cypher received a letter (Attachment E) from Gabriel Griffith of 3550 W Empire 

Hwy. Concerns of property values going down with commercial structures. 

Suggested set hours of operation, natural barrier on all signs, appropriate 

lighting, height of proposed building staying at12 ft. and rethink retention 

pond. Cypher advised the retention pond is a requirement. 

Cypher received letter from Doug Turrill and Calla Werle (Attachment F) in 

regards of concerns for night light, buildings max height of 12 ft. being 

retained, no 24-hour access, confirmation that lighting is down lighting and 

concerns for the retention pond.  

Cypher received a letter (Attachment G) from Rebecca Lessard, 13035 S Green 

Trail. Concerns on the expansion include lighting, limited access, concern of 

someone living in storage units, building color, building height and required 

landscaping. Cypher advised someone living in a storage unit would never 

happen as part of the lease requirement and zoning requirements.  

Cypher received a letter (Attachment H) from Mark Patterson that was 

summarized in public comment.  

 

Tad Carter questioned if the facility and the neighboring properties are in a 

commercially zoned district, Cypher advised the Red Barn and the Bed and 

Breakfast are commercially zoned. Carter asked if there was anything in this 

commercially zoned district that this proposal would be in in violation of.   

Cypher advised that from his perspective there is no violation, unless proved 

otherwise when findings of fact are reviewed. Carter asked in commercial 

zoning is there a requirement for trees, landscaping, etc. Cypher advised 

individual property owners can put screening up. Being good neighbor and 

ordinance in zoning is the only thing that can be enforced by the township. 

Lanham advised there is a minimum that will be advised in the findings of fact. 

Cypher advised the commission can make suggestions but conditions that are 

placed on the approval that are over and above the zoning ordinance should 

come directly from the applicants.  

 

T Eftaxiadis confirmed Building H is 220x40. T asked what the slope of the 

elevation of west slope is. Cypher advised approximately 5-10 ft. T asked if 

there were sprinkler requirements. Cypher said there is a county building code 

that if required the code office will make determination. Cypher advised the 



 

6 
 

code office is hesitant to do a code review without the township approval first, 

but the fire chief did not mention a need for sprinklers. 

 

4. Findings of Fact: 
Cypher advised the findings of fact (Attachment I) have not been updated yet 

from the new submittals and the applicant has requested a modification. 

Cypher reviewed findings of fact and asked commissioners to respond with 

questions/concerns/discussion as follows: 

Section 7.5B: Cypher advised the site plan will need to be updated with date, 

security gate and fence. 

Section 7.7B: Cypher stated he reached out to the assessor and was advised 

that market values were increasing, even when located next to a commercial 

property. In regards to the screening and buffering, Lanham asked if the 

applicants proposal met the or exceeded the current ordinance. Cypher 

advised they are consistent with what the standards are. Lanham suggested 

protecting the west side of the property with more than a fence to include 

adding Conifer trees for visual effect and dust collection. Discussion among 

commissioners included determination on size and location of trees. Eftaxiadis 

commented that the south side of the property shows 7 maple trees that will 

take a long time to grow and will not provide screening in winter. Roush asked 

if the commission can impose a higher standard or requirement to the 

ordinance, Cypher advised yes, but the commission should be careful 

requesting above and beyond the standard, although this situation is unique as 

a special land use. Commissioners agreed that the Conifer trees around the 

property should be minimum of 6 ft. with the option of with a single row 12-15 

feet apart, or 2 staggered rows with 20 foot spacing.  The Commissioners 

agreed that the applicant may put up a fence but it will not be required due to 

the requirement of trees. Commissioners discussed timing of planting trees 

and determined the trees should be planted by June 1st. Eftaxiadis suggested 

adding prohibitions to the lease for disposing of liquids from storage 

vehicles/boats out of concern of contaminants in the retention ponds. The 

applicant advised they would provide a lease to the board for review.  

Additional Discussion: Commissioners agreed that hours of operation and 

accessibility should be dawn to dusk year-round. 

 

Lanham asked for a motion to approve with/without conditions or deny the 

Sleeping Bear Storage Amended Special Land Use Permit. Eftaxiadis motioned 

to approve the application for Sleeping Bear Storage Amended Land Use 

Permit with conditions discussed in finding of fact. Carter seconded.  Roll call 

vote: Noonan (yes), Eftaxiadis (yes), Roush (yes), Lanham (yes) Carter (yes). 

All present in favor, motion carried. 



 

7 
 

 

D: Close Public Hearing and resume regular meeting 

 

Lanham asked for a motion to close the public hearing for the Sleeping Bear 

Storage Amended Special Use Permit. Carter moved to close the public 

hearing; Eftaxiadis seconded. All present in favor, motion carried.   

 

e. Zoning Ordinance Amendments for PC Review 
No review at this time 

 
 

10. New Business   
A. Zoning Ordinance 

Commissioner Lanham suggested a review of the ordinance. 
Commissioners agreed to address the review at the next meeting.  
 

11. General Public Comment - None 
 

12. Comments from the Commissioners – None 
  

13. Next Meeting: Monday, March 18, 2024; Kasson Township Hall   
  

14. Adjournment   
 

Chairman Lanham asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Eftaxiadis 

moved to adjourn the meeting; Noonan seconded. All present in favor, 

motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 8:51 pm.  

 

 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

Marsha Wolf 

Kasson Township Recording Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

8 
 

Attachment A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

9 
 

Attachment B 

 



 

10 
 

 



 

11 
 

 



 

12 
 

 



 

13 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

14 
 

 

Attachment C 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

15 
 

 

Attachment D 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

16 
 

 

Attachment E 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

17 
 

 

Attachment F 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

18 
 

 

Attachment G 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

19 
 

 

Attachment H 

 

 



 

20 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

21 
 

Attachment I 

 



 

22 
 

 



 

23 
 

 



 

24 
 

 



 

25 
 

 



 

26 
 

 



 

27 
 

 



 

28 
 

 



 

29 
 

 



 

30 
 

 



 

31 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

32 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


